
AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

OREGON PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2024, AT 6:00 P.M.

ONSITE MEETING:  BOARD ROOM 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

1) CALL TO ORDER

2) ROLL CALL

3) RECOGNITION OF VISITORS

4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF AUGUST 13, 2024
B. PERSONNEL & POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES OF 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2024

5) FINANCIAL

A. TREASURER’S REPORT
B. CLAIMS PAYABLE AND CHECKS DRAWN

6) REPORTS

A. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
B. FINANCE COMMITTEE – NO REPORT
C. PERSONNEL & POLICY COMMITTEE – MINUTES INCLUDED
D. PARKS & FACILITIES COMMITTEE – NO REPORT
E. PROGRAM & SERVICE COMMITTEE – NO REPORT
F. PARKS & FACILITY REPORT 
G. RECREATION REPORT 
H. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

7) UNFINISHED BUSINESS

8) NEW BUSINESS



A. ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL 

B. PERSONNEL POLICY 4.07E WORK WEEK UPDATE

C. ENTER EXECUTIVE SESSION

THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, DISCIPLINE, 
PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC EMPLOYEES OF THE 
PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY, 
INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A COMPLAINT LODGED 
AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR AGAINST 
LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY TO DETERMINE ITS 
VALIDITY.  OPEN MEETINGS ACT PAR. 120/2. C(1).  

8) COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 

9) DIRECTORS COMMENTS 

10) PRESIDENTS COMMENTS 

11) ADJOURNMENT  

NEXT REGULAR MEETING – OCTOBER 15, 2024 @ 6:00 PM 



Oregon Park District Board of Commissioners 
Nash Recreation Center ~ Board Room 

304 So. Fifth Street 
Oregon, Illinois 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
August 13, 2024 

Brian Beckman, President, called the Regular Meeting to order at 
6:00 p.m. 

PRESENT: Brian Beckman, Josh Messenger, Mark Tremble, Dan 
Engelkes, George Howe 

ABSENT: None. 

OTHERS PRESENT: Erin Folk, Executive Director; Dan Griffin, 
Finance Administrator; Tina Ketter; Supt. of Recreation, Brent 
Suter, Supt. of Parks; Adam Metz; Treasurer, Haley Mizner, Board 
Secretary 

VISITORS PRESENT: Heather Braden, Ethan Schafer, Nick McDaniels, 
Chase Clark 

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS: 

There were no visitors in attendance who wished to address the 
board.     

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. Beckman asked for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting 
Minutes of July 9, 2024.   

Motion by Dan Engelkes, seconded by Josh Messenger, the Regular 
Meeting Minutes of July 9, 2024, be approved as presented. Roll 
Call: Josh Messenger, Dan Engelkes, Mark Tremble, George Howe, 
Brian Beckman- yes.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUS.  

Treasurer’s Report 

Mr. Beckman stated that the July Treasurer’s report was submitted 
and was available at oregonpark.org. 

Mr. Beckman asked if there were any questions regarding the 
Treasurer’s report. 



Motion by Mark Tremble, seconded by Brian Beckman, the July 
Treasurer’s Report be approved. Roll Call: Dan Engelkes, Mark 
Tremble, George Howe, Josh Messenger, Brian Beckman – yes.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUS.  

Accounts Payable 

Mr. Beckman stated that the accounts payable for July had been 
submitted for review.  He asked if there were any questions 
pertaining to the report.   

There were no additional questions regarding the Accounts Payable.     

Motion by Dan Engelkes, seconded by George Howe, the Accounts 
Payable for July of 2024 be approved as presented.  Roll Call: 
Mark Tremble, George Howe, Josh Messenger, Dan Engelkes, Brian 
Beckman – yes.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUS. 

REPORTS 

Director’s Report- Ms. Folk stated that after seven months of the 
fiscal year the district is doing extremely well.  She stated that 
they were able to collect the second tax payment from 2023, so 
they have collected 53.4% of their total tax receipts for 2024.  
She stated that interest earnings continue to outpace 
expectations.  She stated that the park improvement fund is going 
to continue to be one of the largest funds for right now until 
they start to spend that down.  She stated that the corporate and 
recreation fund continue to be healthy. 

Ms. Folk stated that for participation they also continue to 
outpace expectations.  She stated that they have already collected 
97% of their pass and daily fee revenue for what they were 
expecting for the entire year.   

Ms. Folk stated that Heather Braden and Ethan Schafer were this 
months Caring, Creative, and Community-Focused employees of the 
month.  She stated that Ethan has been a tremendous asset to the 
district.  She stated that Ethan has stepped up in any areas that 
they have needed help.  She stated that Heather is their intern, 
and someone who they do not have to provide direction to.  She 
stated that she has helped out with a number of different programs 
throughout the year.  She stated that these are two young adults 
who have been very proactive in their roles for the district.   



Ms. Folk stated that the aquatics team received a five-star elite 
status.  She stated that they have now received five stars two 
years in a row.       

There were no additional questions or comments for Ms. Folk               

Committee Meetings  

Mr. Beckman stated that there were no committee reports.   

Parks Report – Included in Board Packet. Mr. Suter stated that 
pool renovations had begun.  He stated that the parks staff are 
working on renovations at the old shop.  He stated that Co-ed 
softball this year will be held on diamond one so they can update 
the dugouts on diamond two.  

Mr. Suter welcomed any additional questions or comments.    

There were no additional questions or comments for Mr. Suter. 

Recreation Report – Included in Board Packet. Mrs. Ketter stated
that they had record participation numbers this summer and it was 
a kudos to Heather and Ethan.  She stated that they did amazing.  
She stated that the pool staff has also done amazing, and the five-
star audit shows their dedication.  She stated that the family fun 
night was a success. 

Mrs. Ketter welcomed any questions from commissioners.  

There were no additional questions or comments for Mrs. Ketter.         

Administrative Report – Included in Board Packet.  Mr. Griffin 
stated that they were excited to get the fall guide released.  He 
stated that they will soon start planning financials for next year.  

There were no additional questions or comments.     

BUSINESS (unfinished)- None. 

BUSINESS (new)- 

Electric Aggregation Contract- NASH 

Mr. Beckman stated that the Electric Aggregation bids had been 
received.  He asked Ms. Folk to please provide a review of the 
bids. 



Ms. Folk stated that they were all taken back by the bids that 
they received.  She stated that the current contracted rate is 
.059 and the lowest contracted rate they received back on the bids 
was .084.  She stated that this amounts to a significant increase 
for the budget starting in 2025. She stated that they investigated 
the options of delaying the bids and a one-year contract, but Mike 
from Rock River Energy does believe that their best bet is to 
pursue the 2- year agreement with MC2 at a rate of .084/KWH for an 
annual fixed energy cost of $92,143.  She stated that it is about 
a $28,000 increase from the current budget.  
 
Mr. Beckman asked for a motion to approve a 2-year agreement with 
MC2 at a rate of .08409/KWH.  
 
Motion by Dan Engelkes, seconded by Josh Messenger, a 2-year 
agreement with MC2 at a rate of .08409/KWH be approved as 
presented. Roll Call: George Howe, Josh Messenger, Dan Engelkes, 
Mark Tremble, Brian Beckman – yes.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUS. 
 
Community Solar Program 

Mr. Beckman stated that the district has been presented with an 
opportunity to pursue participation in a community solar program.  
He stated that the program provides the district with an electric 
bill credit in the amount of 10% on the energy rates.  He stated 
that this discount would be reflected on the monthly bill. 

Ms. Folk stated that at this time they are only asking for 
authorization to sign a disclosure agreement. 

Motion by Mark Tremble, seconded by Dan Engelkes, the board to 
authorize staff to sign disclosure forms as required by Illinois 
Shines to enter into a community solar program.  Roll Call: Josh 
Messenger, Dan Engelkes, Mark Tremble, George Howe, Brian Beckman- 
yes.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUS.  

Autumn on Parade Permit Use- Park East- October 5, 2024 

Mr. Beckman stated that Autumn on Parade has requested use of Park 
East on October 5, 2024, for the annual car show. 

Motion by Dan Engelkes, seconded by Josh Messenger, the use permit 
for AOP for October 5th be approved.  Roll Call: Dan Engelkes, Mark 
Tremble, George Howe, Josh Messenger, Brian Beckman- yes.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUS.  



COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS

Mr. Howe congratulated all staff present and said they were all 
valuable assets.  

Mr. Engelkes congratulated all staff for their hard work for the 
district.  

Mr. Tremble congratulated all staff.  He stated that it is neat to 
see the growth among staff.

Mr. Messenger stated that he did a lot of stuff this summer and 
saw Ethan there all the time.  He congratulated the staff.  He 
stated that they are lucky to have such great staff.  

DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS

Ms. Folk stated she always hears how hands on their staff is.  She 
gave a kudos to the staff and the work that they do.  

PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS

Mr. Beckman congratulated all the staff for what they do for the 
district.  

ADJOURN
Motion by Dan Engelkes, seconded by George Howe, the meeting 

adjourned at 6:22 P.M.  ALL WERE IN FAVOR.

Respectfully Submitted,

Haley Mizner
Board Secretary 



Oregon Park District Board of Commissioners 
Nash Recreation Center ~ Board Room 

304 So. Fifth Street 
Oregon, Illinois 

Personnel & Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 4, 2024 

Mark Tremble, Chair, called the Personnel & Policy Committee 
Meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

PRESENT: Mark Tremble, Brian Beckman, George Howe 

ABSENT: None. 

OTHERS PRESENT: Erin Folk, Executive Director, Tina Ketter; Supt. 
of Recreation, Haley Mizner, Board Secretary 

VISITORS PRESENT: None. 

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS: There were no visitors in attendance.   

Administrative Policy Manual 

Ms. Folk stated that staff and the attorney have all reviewed the 
packet and provided their updates.  She stated that the first 
section of the manual went through a significant number of language 
changes.  She welcomed any questions regarding the first section. 

Mr. Howe asked if they have ever had to use the section for the 
executive director’s actions in the absence of a policy.  Ms. Folk 
stated that they have had to do emergency expenditures.  She stated 
that with a policy however, the only time that they had to enact 
this was during covid.   

Ms. Folk stated that the second section was for the administrative 
side of things.  She welcomed any questions.  She stated that they 
did remove the covid policy because they don’t think the covid 
policy is necessary at this point.   

Mr. Beckman asked about leaving removed things in the packet and 
just crossing them out.  Ms. Folk stated that there were so many 
things that needed to change that it became conflicting and 
confusing.  

Ms. Folk stated that they updated the social media policy as 
recommended by the attorney.     



Ms. Folk stated that section 3 was related to finance.  She stated 
that they did go through and clean things up in this section. 

There were no additional questions.   

Recommendation made by Brian Beckman, seconded by George, the 
Personnel & Policy Committee in agreement on recommending the 
Administrative Policy Manual Updates to the full board for 
approval.  Roll Call: Brian Beckman, George Howe, Mark Tremble- 
yes. Full Committee in agreement.            

Personnel Policy 4.07E Work Week Update 

Ms. Folk stated that they are looking to make a change to the work 
week policy due to the use of time clocks and flexing of schedules.  
She stated that to keep employees at the 40-hour mark, they are 
proposing that they change the work week from Sunday to Saturday 
to Saturday to Friday.  She stated that that allows them the 
opportunity to flex schedules during the week if weekend work was 
required and not have to pay overtime.  She stated that this will 
give them the opportunity to manage schedules as best as possible.  
She stated that it will take effect the week of AOP.  

Mr. Tremble stated that they were making the change for the 
district and not for the employee to which Ms. Folk stated that 
that was correct.  Mr. Tremble asked if she sees any repercussions 
from the employee’s side to which Ms. Folk stated that she does 
not.  She stated that everyone seems to be adapting well. 

Mrs. Ketter stated that she thinks that her staff would welcome 
this.  She stated that her staff is not trying to get overtime so 
they would appreciate this.   

Ms. Folk stated that they have been fortunate that all employees 
have fallen above the exempt threshold.  She stated that now with 
the change, they are having to give staff the flexibility to adjust 
their schedules.  She stated that the staff has never had access 
to overtime, so they aren’t missing out on anything.   

Mr. Tremble clarified that the staff will not be able to flex to 
their advantage to which Ms. Folk confirmed.   

Mr. Beckman asked who is going to manage the hours and schedules 
to which Ms. Folk stated their immediate supervisor. She stated 
that supervisors have a good handle on what is going on. 



Ms. Folk stated that overtime will be only if necessary, with 
supervisor approval.  

Ms. Folk stated that a high percentage of staff are fine with 
flexing their schedule.  

Mrs. Ketter stated that most employees understand that they are 
making good wages and have good benefits and are appreciative. 

Ms. Folk stated that they would have a bigger issue if they were 
previously paying overtime and then trying to take it away, but 
they have never paid overtime.  

Recommendation by George Howe, seconded by Brian Beckman, the 
Personnel & Policy in agreement on recommending the Personnel 
Policy 4.07E Work Week Update to the full board for approval.  Roll 
Call:  George Howe, Brian Beckman, Mark Tremble- yes.  Full 
committee in agreement.               

ADJOURN
Motion by Brian Beckman, the meeting adjourned at 4:24 P.M.  

ALL WERE IN FAVOR.

Respectfully Submitted,

Haley Mizner
Board Secretary 



August 2024

Financial Notes:

 $-

 $5,000.00

 $10,000.00

 $15,000.00

 $20,000.00

 $25,000.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Monthly Interest Earned

2022 2023 2024















  






















   





   

   

    



















































 



















  






   































   

   

    

  









   

   

    

   























 



















  
























   









   





































   











 



















  


























   







   









   







   

   

    









   

   

   













 



















  






































   































   













 



















  






   



















































   

























 



















  


















   







   







   



















   

   

    

  

   













   

   

    



 



















  










   

   

    

  

   













   

   

    























   

   

    

  

   













   

 



















  




   

    









   

   

    

  

   















   

   

    















   

   

    

  

   













   

 



















  




   

    











   

   

    

  

   













   

   

    













   

   

    

  

   













   

 



















  




   

    









   

   

    

  

   











   

   

    









   

   

   

   













   

   

    









 



















  








   

   

    

  

   

















   

   

    















   

   

    

  









   

   

    

   

 







$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

TAX EXTENSION BY YEAR

Tax Year

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

AUGUST FACILITY USAGE STATS

NASH FACILITY USAGE STATS POOL USAGE STATS FITNESS CENTER USAGE STATS

0

20

40

60

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ANNUAL MEMBERSHIPS QUARTERLY MEMBERSHIPS MONTHLY MEMBERSHIPS

CORPORATE MEMBERSHIPS WATER AEROBICS 10 PUNCH PASS

 $-

 $1,000,000.00

 $2,000,000.00

 $3,000,000.00

 $4,000,000.00

 $5,000,000.00

 $6,000,000.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

DISTRICT FUND BALANCES 

July Aug

RECREATION REVENUE STATUS 



MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
September 10, 2024 
Parks Report 

 Sports
Park staff has begun construction on the dugouts at diamond #2 at 
Park West. We will be increasing both the length and depth of the 
dugouts. We will be partnering with the school district on the cost 
of the upgrades. The OHS softball program brought it to our attention 
that they felt the dugouts were too small for the age group of their 
kids. They have agreed to split the cost on diamond #2 upgrades this 
year and for diamond number #1 upgrades next year. Park staff removed 
the existing dugouts fencing, post, and concrete. They formed up for 
the larger concrete pad and poured the cement. Prairie fence will be 
installing the new framework and fencing for the dugouts. Park staff 
will install tin roofing over the dugouts, just like the new dugouts 
at Lions Park. All co-ed games will be held on Diamond #1 this fall 
due to the construction as of now. If they are completed ahead of 
schedule, we could move them back to diamond #2

Fall sports have started at Park West to include Co-ed softball, OHS 
soccer, OHS cross country, and OPD soccer. Staff will be busy 
maintaining fields, stripping soccer fields, grooming and chalking 
ball diamond.

 Projects
Park staff have begun repairs on the old shop storage building. Roof 
repairs are complete, all nails in the existing tin were pulled and 
replaced with screws, the old roof vent was removed and patched with 
a piece of matching tin, roof was then washed with a cleaner and 
sprayed with two coats of white elastomeric roof coating. Staff will 
be removing four garage doors and framing them in on the east side of 
the building, replacing any rotten framework, removing old steel 
siding and trim work and replacing with new.

Prairie Fence installed a new 4’ x 8’ swing gate on the southwest 
corner of the Park West tennis courts. This was added mainly for 
safety reasons for an escape route if an intruder entered through the 
existing gate. It will also help with debris cleanup.

Martin & Co. is scheduled to make repairs to the Dog park walking 
path the week of Sept. 2nd if they stay on schedule. This will not be 
at any charge to the district. They had received the bid and did the 
blacktop work last year and almost immediately it started cracking 
and settling in spots. They came and looked at it and agreed to stand 
behind their work and repair it at no cost.

 General  
Summer staff is all done for the season. We do still have two 
seasonal employees working. Weekend parks laborer whose duties 
include garbage, bathroom/shelter cleaning, and shelter rentals. 
Along with the Parks waterer whose duties include watering and 
weeding all flower beds, watering pumpkin patch, and watering newly 
planted trees.

Respectfully submitted, 

Brent Suter 
   Superintendent of Parks and Facilities



MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
September 10th, 2024

Nash Facilities Report

Nash Facility 
The new Dectron air handler has been set on the roof.  As of 
9/3 95% of the duct work has been installed, the new electricals 
lines have been pulled to the unit, and the pipefitters are 
working to connect the hot water lines to the unit.  The 
installation of the new ceilings above the lockers has also 
started.

The demolition of the failed concrete in the pool storage room 
has proven to be a larger task than Sjostrom predicted and has 
caused multiple issues.  The demolition and replacement were
scheduled to be complete on August 23rd but has now been pushed 
back to Sept. 6th.  This delay has caused the replacement of the 
epoxy flooring to be split into two phases, the east side and 
the west side of the pool.  The east side phase will be complete 
on Thursday Sept. 5th.  The west side will not be complete until 
Friday Sept. 20th causing our reopening to be delayed until Sept. 
25th.  Also, during the demolition process multiple electrical 
conduits in the floor were cut, which will cause additional 
electrical work to be done.

The entire pool has been power washed removing all the loose 
and flaking paint.  We also cleaned the pool floor and wall with 
muriatic acid then primed and epoxy painted them.  We have 
installed indicator flags above the pool.  These will allow lap 
swimmers doing the backstroke to know they are approaching the 
wall.  Preventative maintenance and repairs were done on all 
light fixtures on the pool deck.

General
During the August full time staff meeting we reviewed the fire 
emergency procedure.  Supervisors are taking this information 
to their respective staff and training them.

Respectfully Submitted,

Matthew Downing
Deputy Superintendent of Facilities



MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
September 10, 2024 

Superintendent of Recreation Report 

Recreation Department  
August participation decreased 27% over last year. The decrease was due to 
Color Run in July instead of August in 2023; no swim lessons; no Music & 
More at the Market and no August Art in the Park. Our significant increases 
in May-July still have us on track to eclipse 2023 numbers.   
 

2023 2024  Change 
January 900 1017 13% 117.00 
February 890 900 1% 10.00  
March 1642 2163 32% 521.00  
April 993 1077 8% 84.00 
May 868 1712 97% 844.00  
June 3357 3629 8% 272.00  
July 2272 2738 21% 466.00 
August 2136 1565 -27% (571.00)

 
 
The Summer 2024 survey has been completed and an overview is included in 
the board packet. Feedback was discussed with Recreation staff to use for 
planning in 2025. 
 
Winter/Spring 2025 Planning is underway. We have implemented several new 
procedures to work towards creating a balanced brochure and schedule. A 
master calendar has been created to allow us to plan programming and see 
conflicts as we plan. This will be beneficial in creating work schedules 
that fall within 40 hours each week. 
 
A letter to OCUSD School Board President Bryan Wills is included in the 
board packet. Our donation to OCUSD athletics increased $5300 over 2023. 
We appreciate the school staff working with us to provide recreation 
opportunities to our youth. 

 

 Aquatics
A grand opening for the pool will be held on Wednesday, September 25 from 
3-5 p.m. This will be a free event and feature food, prizes, and beach 
balls. “In Our Pool Era” themed event will also feature a craft station. 
We hope the community will join us to re-open the pool. In addition, we 
will be serving coffee and donuts on Thursday morning to welcome back our 
water aerobics patrons. We appreciate everyone’s patience while we improve 
the pool. 
 

  Summer 2024 
A recap of Summer 2024 is included in the board packet. 
 

  Fitness Center 
Personal Training appointments for August numbered 63. 



Additional Fitness Classes offered in August include Tai Chi on Tuesday and 
Saturday; Senior Workouts with Kim; and Weightlifting Club. Wednesday 
Weightlifting club returned, and we now have Club on Monday, Wednesday, and 
Thursday evenings.
Staffing fall hours have returned with school in session. The fitness center 
is staffed from 5:30-9 am M-F; 3-7 pm M-F; and 7-11 am on Saturday.

  Blood Drive 
Our August Blood Drive numbers were slightly down to 25 participants. We 
did have a power outage due to construction and several donors were turned 
away due to that. Our next drive is scheduled for October 10. In discussions 
with RRVBC we will be changing the schedule in 2025 and hosting 2 drives. 
Numbers in Oregon have decreased, and they have the same donors visiting 
the various sites. They will condense and offer fewer Oregon locations to 
increase drive numbers instead of spreading them to different locations.

 Children’s Center
Children’s Center is back in session with 16 in our 3-year-old program and 
13 in the 4-year-old program. Mrs. Oliver has joined us for the increase 
in the 3-year-old program. Class photos were taken by Lifeworks Imaging on 
September 4 and 5. Students are getting back into the swing of things and 
have been enjoying utilizing the outdoor classroom.

Respectfully Submitted,

Tina Ketter, CPRP 
Superintendent of Recreation



MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
September 11, 2024 

Business Administration Report 

 Financial Review  
The August 2024 Treasurers Report is included in the Board Packet. Overall 
fund balances decreased by $172,089.91 as compared to July month end but 
remain consistent with budget trends.  Interest returns also continue to 
provide an increased form of revenue for the District.  IPDLAF return rates 
for August were 5.12%, totaling $16,834.47.  Interest earnings for the fiscal 
year totaled $109,535.10, 95.31% of budget estimates with 1/3 of the fiscal 
year remaining.   

 Property Tax Receipt  
The District received its third tax distribution from the 2023 tax year.  
The receipt totaled $24,116.61, which represents approximately 54.5% of the 
expected overall receipt by the end of October.  The funds will be invested 
with the Illinois Liquid Asset Fund until needed to pay District obligations. 
The District will receive the 2nd large tax distribution, approximately $1.5 
million, at the end of September. As a reminder, the average City of Oregon 
homeowner will only pay approximately $170 or 4.48% of their property tax 
bill to the Park District.   
   

 Budget and Evaluation Schedule  
The District released the 2025 Budget and Evaluation Schedule to all staff 
in preparation for the upcoming fiscal year.  The schedule has been included 
in the September Board Packet.  The new fiscal year budget planning will 
begin in October and be finalized in February when the 2025 fiscal year 
Budget and Appropriations Ordinance is approved.  Key components are noted 
below: 

 Budget Planning:  The District will kick off the 2024 planning in 
Department Head Meetings and within each department.  Planning will 
also include a review of the 2024 fiscal year.  The staff will complete 
a review of the long-term capital plan and current year status.  The 
long-term plan will be updated in preparation for the new fiscal year. 

 G.O. Bonds/BINA:  The District did not complete the annual General 
Obligation Bond cycle in 2024, as the District approved a 2-year G.O. 
Bond sale to take advantage of the low interest rates in 2023.  The 
District must complete the Bond Information Notification Act (BINA) 
requirements for the new 2025 bond issue.  The hearing will be held at 
the November 2024 regular meeting.  The District will again work with 
Mesirow Financial to complete a private placement of the G.O. Bonds.  
The tentative plan is to approve the low bidders bond offer in January 
of 2025.  The finance committee will be presented with the current 
market conditions and overall plan at the November meeting.   

 Tax Levy:  The District will receive its annual EAV estimate in late 
September / early October to begin the tax levy process.  The District’s 
approval of the Byron Power Station Real Property Tax Assessment 
Settlement Agreement last June will assist the District in its longer-
term Tax Levy plan.  The set EAV for the Districts largest taxpayer 
will allow the District to provide an earlier Levy estimate.  The 
District does not currently expect to undergo the Truth in Taxation 
proceedings for the 2024 tax year levy, as the overall levy increase 
will not exceed 105% of the prior tax year.  The Finance Committee will 
meet in November to discuss the levy and tentative 2025 budget.  The 
final 2024 tax levy will be approved at the Regular Board Meeting in 



December and must be filed with the County Clerk by the last Tuesday 
of December.  
Personnel Evaluations:  The Districts staff will undergo the annual 
performance evaluation process in late October/early November.  The 
District will utilize the 2024 Market Benchmarking Analysis & Structure 
Development completed with HR Source to prepare for wage 
recommendations.  The District will receive annual structure adjustment 
from HR Source in early November.  The adjustment will assist the 
District in updating the wage ranges.  The recommendations will be 
reviewed by the Personnel Committee in early December and approved by 
the full Board of Commissioners at the Regular December Board Meeting. 
Final Budget:  The Combined Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 
must be approved by the 1st quarter of each fiscal year.  The District 
will plan to approve the ordinance at the February Regular Meeting.  
The budget must be made conveniently available for public inspection 
for at least 30 days prior to passage.  The District will hold a public 
hearing on the budget for public comment.  

Administrative Updates
The District corporate membership enrollment period with the School 
District is still underway and will end September 15th.  There are 
currently 110 passes that have been sold to OCUSD staff and families.  
The District has resumed taking applications for an Administrative 
Services Coordinator position at part time.  The flexibility of a part 
time position will assist the District in fulfilling the position 
responsibilities and provide a benefit to prospective employees.   

Respectfully Submitted,

Dan Griffin,  
Finance & Technology Administrator



 MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
September 10th, 2024 

Event and Adult Recreation Coordinator Report 

Special Events
Registration is open for our fall season special events. Returning 
special events are the free Halloween Storywalk and annual Christmas 
Breakfast with Santa at the Taft Campus. Registration is also open for 
the 2025 Eagle-Watching brunches in January and February which have 
already gained 12 registrations.       

New special events this season include our first ever floating pumpkin 
patch event in the Nash Recreation Center Pool, and the first Search-
for-Santa event since 2021. 

End of Summer/Adult Programs
Due to very high temperatures before Labor Day, I put together a bonus 
Pop-Up and Play program at the Park West Splashpad with bubbles, water 
toys, and free popsicles.  This free program drew 57 participants.  

The Wild About Monarchs public program drew 29 participants between 2 
sessions.  In addition, I received a homeschool group field trip request
for monarch programming that is expected to draw 28 participants, and 
adaptive program sessions for Village of Progress and OCEC are scheduled 
for September 5 and 12.  The fall season has seen an increase in requests 
for homeschool programs, with two requests received in the month of 
August.  

The beginning of the school year brought about an increase in adult 
program participation, especially social programs.  Due to high demand, 
capacity for Bingo, Brownies, and Booze programs was increased from 65 
to 75 seats.  Bingo nights will be held on September 12th and November 
14th this season.  Two other adult classes, Mini-cheesecakes with Lynnie’s 
Kitchen, and the Ceramic Christmas Tree with Cin’s Treasures hit their 
needed minimuns less than one week after registration opened. New this 
year, grown up puzzle party at Cork & Tap gained 5 registrations in the 
first week.   

Looking Ahead
I am looking forward to participating in professional development 
at the 2024 National Recreation and Parks Association conference 
next month in Atlanta, GA.  

Planning is underway for the Winter/Spring 2025 season. Our Daddy-
Daughter and Mother-son dances are scheduled for March 7-8, Easter 
Egg Hunting is set for April 17, and the Kerwin Memorial 
Baseball/Softball kickoff is scheduled for May 31.    

Respectfully submitted.

Caleb Jenks
Events & Adult Programming Coordinator



MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
September 10th, 2024 

Athletic Coordinator Report 

Fall Soccer 
Our Fall 2024 Soccer season is well underway. We have hosted 2 weeks 
in August and will host on the last week, October 5th. On this day we 
will host the tournaments for U10, U11, U13 and U15. Byron will be 
hosting the U9 end of season tournament. This League is run in 
conjunction with Byron Park District and features teams from Stillman 
Valley, Winnebago, Pecatonica, Rochelle, and Polo. A youth soccer 
night will be held on September 9th featuring an OHS varsity game. 
Kids will be able to participate in a shootout against an Oregon 
Goalkeeper at half time, enter drawings for prizes, and everyone will 
receive a hot dog at the concessions stand. 

Fall Basketball Camp 
Our fall basketball camp for ages 4–9 year-olds, which is offered in 
conjunction with the OHS Lady Hawks basketball team, will start on 
September 9th, with twenty-five kids participating in comparison to 
55 in 2023. Coaches Angela Reynolds and Jarrett Reynolds and their
teams will be running the camp at the Blackhawk Center and OHS Girls 
Basketball will receive all proceeds from the camp.  

6th Grade Girls Competitive Volleyball/ Jr High Cross Country
The 6th Grade girls’ volleyball season is off to a great start. We 
have a full roster of sixteen girls in the program, and we have been 
fortunate to secure Mrs. Rachel Curry as our coach again this year. 
This season will run through October 2nd. Coach Matt Hussung is 
coordinating our Junior High Cross Country program again this year. 
We have seventeen athletes from 5th, 6th, 7th, and 8th grade participating 
and they have already started to compete in their meets for the 
regular season. Again, this year, our athletes will be eligible to 
compete in the state tournament at the end of the season if they 
qualify. 

Fall Guide 
The new Fall guide is live and features basketball programs for PreK 
through sixth grade. Adult women’s Volleyball league, pickleball 
league, designated beginners pickleball open gym times, two pickleball 
tournaments, Gaga ball Wednesdays and open volleyball gym times are 
also upcoming. New additions include a Little Hawks basketball, 
offering opportunities for kids as young as 3 years old.

J-Hawks Basketball 
We have four teams registered for our new J-Hawks basketball Travel 
program. Practices are underway, and games are slated to start in 
mid-October with the Eastland Booster Fall Leagues.

Respectfully submitted,

Lesley Sheffield 
Athletic Coordinator 



MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
September 10, 2024 

Recreation Program Coordinator Report 

Programming 

Tumbling returns in September after the summer hiatus. We have 20 kids 
enrolled in tumbling. Classes offered are Tiny Tots and Beginner/Novice. 

Camp OPD Goes Olympic 

Camp OPD finished its summer the week of August 5.  We celebrated the 
first Camp OPD Olympic games.  Campers were divided into three teams 
and competed for both individual and team medals.  Every camper earned 
at least one medal during the week.  We finished the camp season making 
ice cream in a baggie and enjoying the bounce house in the gym. 

Willy Wonka Kids 

Thirty kids in third through sixth grades auditioned for parts in the 
show.  Everyone was given a spot.  Now they are learning lines and 
practicing songs and choreography for their show on November 9. The 
director is Justine Davis and Asst. Director is Kristy Crosby, both 
teachers at Oregon Elementary. 

Extended Time 

My staff and the parks guys assisted with moving the camp stuff from 
Nash back to the school.  We set up the room and got ready for the 
campers to begin on Wednesday, August 14.  This month’s highlights were 
building with pretzels and marshmallows, visiting the splash pad twice, 
and learning new games. We will be in the OES building on Mondays, 
Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Fridays and out in a park or at Nash on 
Wednesdays to get out of the building during the teacher meetings. 

Respectively submitted, 

Kelley Huston 
Recreation Program Coordinator



*All Dates Subject to Revision as Necessary 
 

January 1 to December 31, 2025
DATE     ACTIVITY /DEADLINE        NOTES 

September 20, 2024 Bond Placement Agent Meeting Bond Placement Agent Meeting to Discuss FY 25 Sale
October 1, 2024 Annual EAV Estimate Release Latest date the County will release the annual EAV 

estimate for current tax year
October 1, 2024 Opening Budget Meeting Dept Heads ~ Capital and Operational Discussion

Review Current Year Capital Completion/Estimates
October 15, 2024 Monthly Board Meeting BINA: Bond Information Notification Order
October 16, 2024 Regular FT Staff Meeting Full Staff Meeting Budget and Goals Discussion
October 21, 2024 Individual Staff Meetings Week of individual staff budget meetings / review
October 25, 2024 Capital / G.O. Bond Review Determination of Capital Needs/Bond Sizing for FY 25
October 28, 2024 Begin Staff Evaluations Dept Heads/Supervisors begin 2024 Staff Evaluations
October 31, 2024 Truth in Taxation

Determination 
Determine if the District must comply with the Truth in 
Taxation Proceedings with the 2024 Tax Levy

November 6, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting Finance Meeting to Review 2024 Tax Levy
November 12, 2024 Monthly Board Meeting 2024 Bond Information Notification Hearing (BINA) 
November 15, 2024 Staff Evaluations Due All Full Time and Part Time Evaluations for 2024 are due
November 20, 2024 Schedule Tentative Audit Dates Schedule Current Fiscal Year’s Annual Audit
December 4, 2024 Personnel Committee Meeting Review & Recommend Health Insurance Renewal – FY25 

2025 Personnel Wages Recommendation
December 10, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 

Approve 2024 Tax Levy 
Approve Annual Wages for Fiscal Year 2025 
Approve Annual Employee Benefits Plan

December 16, 2024 Final Line-Item Budgets Due
FY 24 Staff Budget Review

Tentative Budget Line-Item Completion for FY 25
Tentative Capital Budgets Due for FY 25

December 18, 2024 Fiscal Year 2025 Goals Due Long-Term & Short-Term Departmental Goals Due
January 1, 2025 2025 Fiscal Year The Fiscal Year Officially Begins
January 3, 2025 Dept. Narratives Due Departmental Narratives and FY 25 Previews Due
January 8, 2025 Finance Committee Meeting FY 25 Tentative Budget Presentation

Release Budget Packet for Public Inspection
January 14, 2025 Monthly Board Meeting Adopt G.O. Bond Ordinance for FY 25 
January 31, 2025 Bond Closing Execute Bond Closing – Estimated Funds Receipt Date
February 11, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 

Public Hearing/Approve Budget
Public Hearing on Budget and Appropriations Ordinance
Approve Budget & Appropriations Ordinance

 The Budget and Appropriation Ordinance is very simply the act of authority that allows the Park District to expend funds for 
agency expenses. 

 The District must adopt a combined annual budget and appropriation ordinance within or before the first quarter of the fiscal 
year.  The ordinance must be made conveniently available for public inspection for at least 30 days prior to final action. 

 The District must also hold a public hearing on the budget and appropriation ordinance prior to passage.  In addition to the public 
hearing the District must also comply with the Truth in Taxation procedures.  If the District estimates its tax levy to be greater 
than 105% of the preceding year’s levy there are additional requirements the District must comply with.   

 BINA Info – The District must complete the Bond Information Notification Act (BINA) prior to issuing General Obligation Bonds.  
The District typically must complete the hearing every 2-3 years.  The BINA requires a public hearing on debt issuance. 

 The District will also publish its annual capital improvement plan with the annual budget packet.  The annual capital 
improvement plan is a single year snapshot of the Districts long-term capital improvement plan.  The 5-year capital improvement 
plan is annually updated to achieve the goals of the Districts Master Plans. 

2025 FISCAL YEAR
BUDGET & EVALUATION SCHEDULE 



















September 5, 2024

Oregon Community Unit School District Board of Education
c/o President Bryan Wills
206 S. 10th Street
Oregon, IL 61061

RE: Athletic Partnerships

On behalf of the Oregon Park District staff and athletic participants I would like to recognize several OHS 
athletic coaches for their efforts to assist the Oregon Park District in developing our youth volunteer 
athletic coaches and youth athletes.  Youth athletics can be an exciting experience for many and the first 
opportunity these young individuals encounter team sports. 

For many years, the park district has investigated options with OHS to enlist varsity coaches to assist 
with coaching clinics, youth skill development and impressing upon our youth the importance of being 
an Oregon Hawk.  A renewed emphasis was placed on these efforts in 2018-19. Since that time, we 
continue to build programming through our organizations to benefit students in OCUSD #220.

We want to recognize the successful efforts of your coaches and staff during the 2023-24 school year. 
From September 2023-
athletics through camps, sports nights and introducing a travel basketball program.

In the 2023-24 School year we had participation from Nate Girton, Varsity Baseball Coach; Segar Larson, 
Varsity Soccer Coach; Angela Reynolds, Varsity Girls Basketball; Tiffany Rufer, Varsity Soccer Coach; 
Farrell Tremble, Varsity Volleyball Coach; Jarrett Reynolds, OHS Varsity Basketball Coach; Nate Rogers, 
Varsity Softball Coach; and Broc Kundert, Varsity Football Coach. Also, the OJHSH Physical Education 

summer youth pickleball camp. Their efforts, along with their staff and players, allowed us to offer skills-
based camps, clinics, and assistance to our volunteer coaches.

As a result, the park district has contributed $16,378.40 in 2023-24 back to their respective programs in 
return for their services. This is the largest contribution to date. The 2022-2023 school year total was 
$11,074.45.  The organizations were given 100% of all proceeds. Camps and clinics were held 



Baseball All-Stars, Strength Camp, Little Athletes and new this year Pickleball clinics and camps.

Andy Eckardt and the Bass Fishing Club. Mr. Eckardt and several students volunteered during our June 
Pop Up and Play at Lutheran Outdoor Ministries to teach and assist kids with fishing. 

Thank you to the OHS Wrestling and OHS Soccer teams for volunteering during our Color Run. We 
appreciate the coaches and students volunteer efforts in our community.

August 2024 saw the introduction of the Junior Hawks Travel Basketball Program. This program is run by 
Oregon Park District with assistance and direction from your Varsity Basketball coaches. Both Angela 
Reynolds and Jarrett Reynolds have helped with try-outs, assisted in securing coaches and guidance for 
the fall season. We are excited to kick-off the travel season with four teams traveling to Eastland to play 
in the fall leagues. We hope to build upon these teams with the spring season.

A highlight for our youth teams is our OHS High School nights. Players are invited to come support OHS 
Athletics on a specific night, receive free admission, a treat and get to participate in some way in the 
evening. Thank you to Mr. Lawton for scheduling these nights and the coaches for getting youth 
involved. Nights were held for Baseball, Softball, Boys and Girls Soccer, Boys and Girls Basketball and 
Volleyball this year. Each year attendance increases, and we look forward to what the 2024-25 school 
year brings.

As a District, we understand the commitment required of an OHS coach and hope to continue to 
develop our relationships with each coach to directly benefit our volunteer coaches and the skill 
development of each future Oregon Hawk.  

Sincerely,

Tina Ketter
Superintendent of Recreation

CC:  Dr. PJ Caposey, Superintendent of Schools; Heidi Deininger, OHS Principal




